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CHARIERED ACCOUNTA NTS

INDEPENDINT AUDITORS' REPORT

143, POWERGRID Siw.ni Tr.mmission Lim ed (Erdtwhile Bik.n.r B Pows

Tranomtusio. Limited)

R.poit on th€.udit of the St dalon. [ineci.l St t6.nr.

w. have audited the a..omPmying Slandalone FirNial sbbMtl ol W6 POWERGRID

siwani Tr.tumisaion Lim ed (EFtwhile Di&aer D Powcr Tr mi*ion Limite.l) 1"0t€

Conpmy"), which rcnpri* t€ Barare Shel as at 31r Meh 205, .nd the StaleMl or Prcrir

ad L6 (iftluding Othe! ComPehedv€ hcom€), stateMt oI chd86 in €qurry ad state@nt

ot.asn flo$ for d€ p.riod 14.05.2024 to 31.03.2025, and notes to financial stato.ntt iftlding
tut€rial accounting poh.ies md other exPletory infomrion (hereimlt€r tefet€d ro 6 "the

Standalo.e rinmi.l St2tements").

ln ou opinion dd to rhe best oI our ii'tomrion ad a@tding to the €xPlamtios givd to

us, the rlorcpid sbndalone linmcial statendts give tne inlorMtion r€quiad by th€ ComPdi6

A.r, m13 (the A.t") in the n1mer e reqnir€d .rd Sive a Eue dd lair view in mnlomitv with

OE Irdian A(outing Siandards Presoib€d 6der Setio! 133 of the Act read with ComPmis

(Indid Ac.ounting sh.t rds) Rul€s 2015 s Mded ("lnd A9l dd othd arcuntng Ptin.iPl€s

geMaly accepted in Iidia, oI the shte oI .Ilais of lhe ConPdy 6 ai Ma(h 31, 205, .nd iB LB
md Total Comprehensive Income, che86 in eqlity md its Calh Fl@6lor fie Penod 14.05 2024

io 31.m.2025.

we .on.lu.ted our audil in ac.o.dm.e with the Standard on Auditing (SAs) sP4fied md€r

S<tion 143(10) oI the Cmpanies &t,2013. Our resPotuibilities under tn6. Standards aF turrner

desibet in the Audiiols ResPosibiliti6 lor 0E Aldil oI 0le Stan lalone Fi6cial Stat€nats

stion oI our r€port we de indepen iant oi the Con my in aeordaft with the Cod' oI Ethi6

issued by tlE Isbtub oI Chart€Pa A..omlants ol Ldia to8eth€r wi6 the €thi'al requircndLr

rhar are elevmt to ou audit oI the Shdalone iimial etatemats under the Prcviti@ ol the



SURESH KUMAR MITTAI & CO-
CIIARIEREO ACCOIJNIANTS

Conpanjes Act, 2013 md ttE Rules theEunder, and we have tuifiled ou other ethiol

rBponsibilit'g in aao..lde with opp rcqnir;nmts md the Code of Ethics.

we b.lieve dDt the aldit evid€n.e we have o&ined is sut{icicnt dd appioprjate to prcvid€ a

b6i6 Io! @r opinio on dE Standalotu Fil1mial Siat€rcnts,

K.y aldit mtres are thop mfte6 6ar, in ou prcf6ion l judSpmt, were oI most signitum

in olr audit oI the Stm.lal@ Fi@ial sbM.nts oi the or!€nt penod. Th* mtlds w€rc

addr*d in Ore dtext oI our audit of Ot Standalme FiDNial st tdents is a wholq od
inioming o opinion thereor and we do nol Provide a seParate oPinion o! th& K.y Adit

Th. cmpary is a wholy owned sub6idiary ol . listed PaMt bul ir nol a tsied mtit, dd ihe ir

no law or regul2tion reqnirs us to rcPo.t m K€y Audjt MatteE Ho]@d, in our PrcIesional

ju.l8eNnt dd ba*d on ou d.i.iled din$ion wirn th€ mmgerunt, w€ have d€tenined Eut

tne l@y audit @tt s ro b€ coMui.ated in our rcPo.t i! .il

ReepoGibiliti€s of M6ry.mmt .nd Thoe Ch.tged wilh cov.M. for rh. sl drlon

The Conpmy's Board oa Dn{to6 is resPosible for the mftrs staled in S{tim 134(5) oltne

Conpmi6 A.t, 2013 vith resP{t !o the PPParanm of thPsc qt ndslone limial skte@nts dEt

give a Eue md fair vi€w ol the limcial Positio, lilmcial PerIoMe (in hdin8 oth4

Compehmive Incon€), .hd86 in equfty dd csh fl@s oI the comPdy in a.orda@ tith the

acdntinS principler 8€ndally a(ePted in India, ircllding the Indian A(outbg St6'Lrds (l"d

AS) spdtied under Ktion 133 ol the Act lead wiin th€ ComPdies (lndian A(ounting St'ndtr'b)

R!hs, m$ , as mended.

Thb GpoNibit y .l,o includ6 mintellde ol ad€quate t.ounti,8 reords ir do'd.re wilh

the plovisios o( the ComPanies A.r 2O1t Ior salegrinrding oI th€ 6Fts ol th€ C'mPany md ior

pevoting dd d€tmiing ,ran.tr od other iftElbnti6; seldion 6d aPPlicatio of aPProPri5le

a(ounting policGsj m(ing iudgm€nts and Ftinales trEr ar. reaeMl'l€ md Prud€nt, dd

d6ige implemmhtion dd mintun€ ol adequat€ inblml fimial 6nhok, dE( wre

opeEting elr(hvely lor eGuing L\e a@acy and.omPt€cnes of the a(omting r{ords'

secrorlS Rohini creih 11003s
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televal !o the prepahtim and pre$niati@ oI the slandalone fioncial stat€ErnB that Bive a

bue dd Ian viee md arc lrc Ircm mt ri.l mi$lntemL whethd due ro taud or €no.
L pPparina dE shdalme li,1mcial rbr.mt6, rh€ Bo.rd of DiKroE n resp@jble loi
desshg lhe Compan/s ability !o.ontinu. ar a 8otr\g.d.em, di$lGin& s appli.able mfle$
relaEd ro 8oir8 con.em dd lsing th. going cotueh basi! o, rccoutin8 ur €$ the Board oI

Dn(to6 either iniends to liquidat€ th€ C,mpay or ro ..ae operatios, or has no Ealistic

ThGe Bdrd of Dire.roB are also respoGible for ove6eeir8 the Compmy's lil6.ial reporting

Audii6' RdpoEibilitie, fo. th. Audit ot ih. St ftLlon. tinan.ial Stnt.m.ntt

our obstiv6 ar€ to obtain redo@ble dsuranc€ abut whetha th. Slandalo@ 6mial
srat.nmt' ac a whole are iEe lrom mt€rial misralemenL whether due !o ,nud or €rot, and to

i6rue a audito/s report that oclud6 out opinion. Reslrmble durft€ ii . hi8h l€vel oI

6sud.e, b is hot a guaranle€ dut a audit conduct d in dordare Pith SAt wil alwayc

deted a mrerial nlstat€menr when it exists.

Mnstahments.d ane fron fraud or emr and are otridered ruteial iI, individually or in the

aggEgate, lhey .ould ea$mbly b€ erp{red to influre the <onomic d<iti@ oI eB ratm m
&e b.d6 of th6e Shdalore ,iEoal sht€mmb

A5 pdt ot 6 aldit in a..ordance wilfi SAs, we exeri* prot6siml judgement and @intain

prcI6$o@l *ptidsm thrcughoul ihe audit. we aLol

Id€ntily ed as6s the risl oI mterial mi$t teodt ot the Standalone FiMrcial

ShtellMtl, whether due !o lraud or eftr, dsiSn and Pettom audit pe€duE
r6potuiv€ to tice risk, and obtain audit evidem€ lhat is suffi.idt and aPProPriale to

prcvide a basis lor our oPinion. The risL of noi dete.ting a material misshte@nt isulring

frm lrand is higher than for one rcstlting Ircm ercr, as lraud roy involve coluim,

lorgery, intenb@61 onisiom, misrePreentatiotr, or the .reride ot inr.ml conEDl.

obtain m udeEtating oI inr.ml linancial co.hols r.levant to dE audit in ord€r L d6ign

audil pq€dures that a,e apProPrnb in the circumrances. Under Etion 1a3G)(i) oi lh€

A.t, we are .lso rcsporeible ror exp€ssing our oPinion on whether tne ComPdy nas
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adequte irteml timcial conhol systen in place dd 0E opelatin8 effativend oI6ucn

Evaluale tne approprialen$s oI a@ting ,oli.i8 upd md oE EaeEblre o,

aaounting €stiMr$ and related dislNrs mde by th. ll1mg.m€ni

Conclnde on ihe apprcpriabness of Managementt use oI the going omem bas,s o,

aeoubng &d, bded on the audn oid€rc€ obtailed, wh€ther a mterial uncertairly

exists Elahd to events or conditi@ that my cGt signifi. t doubt on the dd!/s abiliry

to conlDue ar a Soing @em I we .@lude otat a @teria] @ertainty erisb, w. de

requted ro dhw auditols repon to th€ plated di$lGur* in the

standalone fimrcEl shiemenb 04 U such di.lGups d. itud.quat , t nodny our

opinion. Ou.otulusios ar€ b.6.d m tne audt €vidre obhjn€d up b th€ date ol onr

audito/! eport. tiow€v€r, tutue €v€nis or cmditioro my case rhe Cohpany to ce@ to

coitiN. as a goirS comm.

Evaluat€ the overal pppntation, st u.ture and ont€nt ol the Sbndalm Fijtrcial

9ratemnb, inclnding Or. diilclr6, ad whether the Slmdalone Fim.ial Sialemdts

Epsmt tie uderlying haMciios ed events in a !l1,m€r rnat achise lan

Secror1o, Rohin , Dethts11OO8s

E-mail suEshkmitialco@omait.com

Maleriality is the tugitude of missLllemenE in thp Stadalone Finamial starements that

individually or in aggegato mkes it Probable tiat rhe (on.mic ddsions oI a resombl€

Lnowledg.able 6er ol the Simd.lone Fimncial Slatemenb n y tE irtluen.ed We .mider

qudtitative mleriatity and qnalitat,ve ,a.tore in (i) PLming the soPe of our andit work d in

evaluatinS $e results of our woit .nd (n) To evaluate tne .ffect ol y identified mislat€nents in

the standalone Fin cial Stahements

we.omuicate with those cnarged vith goveMe r€8anli.& mdg other mttert th€

plamed $ope md riming o( the audit and sigriricant audit ,hdingt induding mv siSnifi.ot

deii.i.mies in int€rtal mtrol that we identily durirs our audit

We al$ prcvide thoF chdged with Sovemtue with a shtenent that w. have rcmPlied with

Ebvmr edical tequnen€nts r€ga.ding indepmd€r€, md t. @mmi.ate with thm all

relatioships an.l oth€r mtteE that my reambly be dto!8ht lo beu on ou ,ndePodfte, od

rhere applicatie, !€laled salegualds.
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Frcm the mtte!5 .omui.ated with thce ch Sed with Bovemece, we determjne thGe @ner6

thar w.r. ot nGt siSnni.a@ in the audit oi rhe Standalone Fimn.ial Stat€nents oI the.u'€nt
period ard are rherelare the L€y andil tubls. we descfib€ these mrers in our auditors repo

utl6l,w or regulation praludes public dislcurc about lne mathr or wh.n, in exketuly l?ft
ci'!:l4tatu6, we detemine that a tulter rhould mt be comuicated in u reporr b€.aue tn€

advde cotueqlenc6 ol doing 5o woukl pas@bly be exp(ted to ouiweid rhe public inrffir
b.reIits of snch cmulcation.

R.pon on Olh€r L.g.l &d R.grlrtory R.quircn.nl3

1. Pauant to the Compdies (Audito/c R.porr) ord.!, 20m ("rne ord€1'), i$ued by lne C€neal

Govement ol India h t lm oI Setion 143(11) oI the Act, we give in the Amdm "4" a

statemnt on the Mttes sPecifred in ParaSraPhr 3 and ,! ol th. Order.

2. ln t€lm o, sub stion (5) ol se.tion 143 oi &e Companjes Acl, 2013, we give in the Arn.tu
"8" . *at€ment on tle diHtim isued under lhe aroreeid s{tion by tie Comphold dd
Auditor GeMal of Irdia.

3. As required by Se.tion 143 (3) ol lne Act, ba*d on our audit we ePo.t that

a. We have lought md obtained aU the i omation dd erPl@tioro whi.h to rhe b€st oI ou,

*nowledge dd LEIieI wft Besry (or t\e putp6es of ou adii,
b. In our opinion, pioper b@ks oI .ccout a3 r€quired by law have b€en l€Pt by ln€

conpdy s lar as it appeas lron our exanimtim ol thoF bets md l@r&.

.. fl\e Bal ce Sheet, oF Sr,ienent oi Prolit and t $, (ituluding otho comPPhecjve

tuome). Staterenl of Ch,n8es in Equilv md the Statemenr oI C6h Flows dealt with by

ln6 Reporl are in aScnmt with the books oI accou!

d. In our opinion, th€ aroresid srmdalore Fin cial Statenents .mPly with 0e Indis

ANdting Standards sp{ified uder p.tion 133 ot tne Act, b€ing IND AS, r€ad vith Rde

7 ol tlE Compai.s (Acounts) Rules, 2014.

setor18, Rohini. oeth-tloo8s

E-mai : su@shkmitbtco@gnai coh

B€ing a $b6idi.ry o, a Govemnt conpmy, S€ction 1A(a oI the Act Frtailing io

disqnalifi.aiion oI DiBtort .re mt applioble to tne ComP y.

Wiih r6pct ro ine ad€qucy 01 &e Intemal Fiwial Conkold ov€. Fiffiial R€Porring oI

the Comp y dd th. operating Eltahven6s ol sucn Cont oL, rer., to @r seParat€ QPort
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g. PuNnt to Notificadon No. GSR 463(E) dated sth J@ 2Ol5 i$ued by the Minnhy of

Co.pcare AffaiB, Govem€nr or hdia, provisios of Sectjm 197 or th€ comPmi6 Act,

2013, ae not app,lcable b th€ compuy, beina a Nb€idiary of G@eI'mat cmpmyi dd
h. wIh respet io the othe. mtt.6 to b€ included in lhe Audito'/s Report in a..ordre with

Rule 11 o, th. Compei6 (Audit and Audrro6) Rd6, m14, in our oPinion .nd td the hest

of our irJomtim d according to the erPlmh.tu given md m8effit
reP6enratiN Provided to us:

i. Tie Compay do6 not have any pending litigatiotr which v@ld imP.ct il3

Financial Posiiid;

ii, fli. Comp&y did et have my L.ng_Tem ConEacts iftluding D€.ivative

Conha.b lor which tb@ wm dy Mtenal foreeable l6s,
in. ]tEr€ werc no anohis whnn {ere req&€d io }e trtufered lo the Inv6tor

Education dd Prctdion Fund by th€ ComPdy.

4. Plsuant to 0i. companiF (Audit md AuditoB) Rut6, 2014, isued bv the Cdtral

Govmt of India in lerN ol tule 11 oi the Act, ,. re?o.l that,

! IlE nr@8€mr has FPr*.led that, b rrle be$ o, n't ltuwledS€ nd b.lid, other

tha as did6ed in th€ notes to the a.outs, no fln.ls have b€4.dvmed or loaned

or invested (eitnd lrom bonowed flnds o! shar. premum or dv other suG or kind

o1tun.ls) by th€.onPey to or in 6y other PeMnG) or €n6tv(i€t), including rorci8n

mtiti6 ("lnt€rrediui*'), wiih lh€ udeBt ndin& whdnd Gotded in Miting d
oth€Mie, ost th. hietu€dlary cha[, whethd, dn*tly or inditcdv I4d or inv6t in

other Pe6os or entib.s id€ntilied in 6y tuMer whats@v.r by o! on beha[ ol ihe

&npdy ('rnfmt€ 8€neficiari6') or Prcvide mv Suddt€€, s(unty or ihe liL€ m

beha[ of th€ Uttitute B€n€ficiri€t,

n) IlE llmasemn B r€Pt*nr.d, dEt, to trle best of ife rnowledge dd b€lie', odrer

the as dirlNed in the notes to tne acconnis, no lunds hav€ be€n r(eived by ln€

conpany rrcm any Person(s) d entitv(i.s), induding roreisn 4t i6 ("Fudins

Parries'1, ,ith the und€rslandin& wherher,<cded in writing or oth€Mi*' tllat the

compmy thall, vheot i, diKdy or indiKrlv, lend or nv6t in otlEr P€mE o' entitis

idmtirred in dy t]rda whats.€v€r bv or on b€hal, oI the Fuding Partv ('Ultimt€

sectorlS, Roh ii, Dethi,11oo85
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Bmencianec') o! provide an),EraEnhe, s(unry or the lilc on behaf oI the Ultirute
B€nelidan6: m.t

in) Based d suh audit pr@duPs tiar we hak .oNidend r€as@bt. ad appDpriat in
rhe cirrumknca, mthing has com. to ou notice thar has caued us to bali.ve that rhe

repr€mtatiom mde. suE L!6e (i) ad (ii) @nra,n &y nateriat mis-sraremenL

s. we hav€ caiiied out 6 ebmiMtion in a(ordee with rhe Impt@ntaiion cuid€lin6 on

Reporting on Audit Trail by Audito6 @der Rule 11G) oI rhe Compdis (Audit and Auditos)

Rul6, 2014 (R€vl*d 2021 Edition) isu.d by the Ifftihre oI Ch.rrerd Arcmrarrs oI lndia.

WheFb, we h.v€ p€rlomed t6t .h{ks Ior ttE compmy whce Shdatone FiMcial
Statemenb have been audiled un.ler L\o A.l, we leport that th. .ohpany has u*.t an

acounting sotrw . ie. saP lor maintaininS fts books of a(ounts as a parr oi rh€

POWERGRID Group, md th€ said aNunting (ERP) solhaan, h6 a leatE of eordins.dir
trail Gdit lod lacility ad the kid rndit hail has opelale.l throrBhout the year ,or aI orc

relevanl lransactioN Koid.d in tie said softu,re. Fu her, ba*ri on the rcsulb of sp(ilic
audit chEts perrorre.l during the .ourse ol our audrt, we did not com a.ross any itrt {e of

audit t&il featurc beirg tampre.l with. Additionally, tle audit trail has be€n pr€ssed by the

conp y N p€r th€ sl2tulory r.qnie66t! for Eod retqtion.

ForSuresh (uma. Mlttal & Co,
Cha.ter€d Accountants
FRN:500063N

S€cror-13. Roh ni, Dethi-110085

E-hail : su@shkminabo@gm.it com

CA RASHI GOSWAMI
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UDIN: 25522561BMNSP09175
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Ano.xurc',/I to th. lnd.p.Ddcnt audttort trcport

As r€fetr€d b in our IndaD€nde.i Audito6' tupon of .v.n datd b ih. m.hbeB oI the r4&
PowDRcRID siwani Tianembaion Liniteil (EBtwhile Bikan.r B Power Ttanomkion
Limited), o. the Standalone Fin.ncial Statements fo. the y€.r ended 31st March 2025, w€ rcport

(rl al (A) Acco.ding to information and explanations given to us, the company has the

capital work in progress for Additional Transnission System for Evacuation of
Power Irom Rajasthan REz PhJv [Pa.t-3:6 cw] IBikaner complexlon the bahnce

sheetdate and no P.operry Plant& Equipment is capitalized on the date.

(B) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not

capitalized any Intangible asset duringthe period.

b) According to information and explanations given ro us the company hat not
capitalized any Propeny, Plant & Equipment [including Intangible asset) during
the period. Hence, reportins underdause 3(ixbl orthe o.de.is notapplicable.

cl A(ording to information and explanations given to us, thecompanydoes nothold
any immovable property.

dl In ouropinion and accordinS to th€ info.mation and explanations given to us, the

company has not revalu€d its Prop€.ty, Plant and Equipment (including Ri€Jrt of
Use a$etsl or rnta.gible assets or both during the y€a. Hence, reporting under

dause 3(i)(d) orthe order is notappLkable.

€) In our opinjon and according to the info.nation and explanations siven to us, no

proceedings have ben initiated or are pendinS against the company for holdin8

any Benami property und€. the "Benani Transactions (Prohibitionl Act,1988 ard
Rules made thereundei Accordinsly reponing requirements in relation to
pamsEph 3 (ixe) a.e not applicable to the company

(iil (a) Acco.dirg to inrormation and explanations siven to us the .omPanv does not haw anv

inve.toriesh.n.e reportinsunder paragraph (iil a is not appllcabl. to th€ conpanv.

tbl The company has noibeen sa ncno ned workins capital limits ln.x.ess ot Rs 5 ctuts, in

aSgregrte, frombanks on theb3sh of sa.urltyof cuBentasseb.

(iii) A.cording to the rnformation and expla.ahons given to ut the Companv has not nad.
investments in, provided any guaraotee or security ot gEnted anv loans or advaoc.s in th€

nature oIloan., secured or unsecu.ed, to.ompanies, firfis,l.imited Liabilitv Parin.shiDs or

aoy other parties. Accodi.Sly paEeBph 3(iii) is not applicable to the companv. We turther

Seclo.1A, Rohinr, Eethi,110035
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report that bankguarantees given asa paftofcontracnalobjiSations oI the company toMrds
tu nornal.ouBe otbudness are not.onsid.r.d a Suarant.es 8tv.n tn th.natore olloans for
the pu.pose or.epoti.Sunderthis clause

(iv) Accordiry to the into.malion and exp lanations eiven to us, the companyhas notgmnted any
loans or made any investn.nts or prcvided any Buarantd. o. s..uritjes to the paties .s
sp.citied under section 145 and 1a6 ofthe Act. Accordingly clause 3(ivl ol the 0rder is not

(vl ln ouropinionand.ccordingto theinformation and explanations giventous, the.ompanyhas
not.ccepted any deposit rrom the publi. & no amounb has been deened to b. deposits in
a..oida... with the provisions otthe ssctions 73 to 76 o. any other rel€vantprovlsions ofthe
A.t, and the rules lramed thereu.der Ac.oidtngly, par.Snph 3(vl of the order is not

appli.able to the company.

(vi) Th..ompany is notrcquired to maintain.ost recods undersechon 143 (1) ofthe Conpanies

Act,2013. He.ce ParaSraph 3 (vi) ofthe order is notapplicableio thecompany.

tviil al Accoldi.s to the,nformation and erplaMtions given to us, the Conrpany is geneElly Esular
in depositin€ undhputed *atutory dues with approp.iate authorlties including lnconeTax,

coods and Sedi.es Tax, sales Ta& wealth Ta& setui.e T.r, Duty ofcustoo, Duiv of Ex.ise,

Valueadd.dTd, Cess and other statutory dues appli.able tu the Companyand that ther€ are

no undispuled statutory dues outstanding6 at 31March 2025 ior a period ofnoE lhan six

nonths from the date th.y be.ame pay?ble. we note that th. conpanv beinga subsidiary ol
the Power Cird Co.poEtion ol India Ltd and is not havin8 any employe. on ts !ole, the

provisions oI the Prdvident Fund and the prcvisro.softhe Employees Stat.lnsuEnce Act e
nor applicable to lle CodPanY.

blAccorni.s to information and exPlanadons given io us, therc are ho statuiory dues r.terred

io in sub'daue (a) havenotb@ndeposited on accountofdisputq

(viiil ln ouropinion and according to the intormahon and erplanations sive. to us, ihe companv has

not re.orded in the books ofaccount any tansa.tion which have b.en surrende.ed ordislosed

s ircom. duringtheyear in thd bx assessneois und.rthe lncone'Iax a.r, 1961 Acco.dinglri

repodingrequn€nents in rclation to paraSnph 3[viii)ar.notapplicabletoth. codpanv

(ixl In our opinion, bas.d on our examinaiiob ofthe records and according to the infomation and

explanations g'veb to us,

G) the codpany h not defaulied dunns the y.ar in repavoenr of loans & pavm.nr of

lnteBt to its fi.an.ialinstitutio.s, bankeB and due! to the Bond holde6, d theP aE nil

such loans bken by the conpa.y from financialinstitutions bank€B and or duestothe

(bl the conpa.y has hot been declared wiltul d.raulter b, anv bank/nnancial

institutio n/o ther l.nder
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(c) term loaos Geceived only Itun the p ent conpany) have been applied ror th€ purpote ror

(dl tunds Eis.d on shorr term basis Geceircd only Ircm the Dareot conprnyl h* .ot b.€n
utilized ior lon3 tern pupose.

(el The company do not have any Subsidiari.s, loiht v.ntures or Associates. Accordinlly,
pameraph3(ix)t.) and 3tix)(fl ale not.pplicable to the oopanl

(x) G) The company has.ot nised money by way oI initial publi. offer or ruther public otr€r
(incl u di ng debt instrun.nts) dr ri n3 the ,€.r

(bl ln ouropinion.ndaccordi.Stotheinrormation and explanattontgtEnto us,th. conpany
has hot made any preleEndal auohent or priwte placem..t ot sharcs or conveltible

debenrures (Iully, panially or optionally convertiblel during the year Accordingly,

p.Egiaph 3(xl(al and 3(x)(b) e notapplicabl.to tbecompany

(xil (a) Ac.ordins to the inrormation and cxDbnations giv.n to us and .s Epres.nt.d by th.
da.aSement, we have been inforhed that no case of lraud h.s be.n committed on o. by

the coopany d0rln8 the Year

(b) As ho rnud h been noij.ed durirythe year as mentioned at xi(a) above, rePoftunder

sub-Se.tion (12) ot Section 143 ofthe companiB Act iD the Form ADT 4 as pres.ribed

under Rule 13ofcompanies (Audft and Audito6) Rul.s 201'l is notapplicabl..

(c) Accoding to the lntomation and .xplanadons giv€n to u5, no rhtsdFblower cooplalnlr
hak be€n reeived drrha the ycar by the Company.

(xiil The company is nor a Nidhicompany as prescribed dhder sedion 406 ortha Act. Accodrn8l,

clause3(xiil orrhe 0rder h notappli.ablE to the companv

(xiiil Accordins to ihe informatio. and explanations 8ircn to us and 6 repernted bv the

maia8ement, all tEroactions with the related pani6 bv Lire companv a@ done .N!rin8
complian..withtherequir.mentsofsectionslTT.ndlSaofth.act,whereve.applic.bleand
rhe d.talls have been dis.losed in the srandalohe linancial stat dents as requir.d bv lhe

appli.able lndianA..ou.tincStanda s.

ixivl Acco'tihg to the inforhation and explanaiions siven to u5 and based on our.xamination olihe

reco rds o f ihe com pany, th. company 15 r ot requircd to appoi nt lnternal Audnor u/s 138 of th€

Conpanies Act, 2013. Accodin8l, PaEsaph 3(xivl is nor applicahl€ to the rcmpanv'

(p) Accordi ns to the in ro rmatio n and expla.ations gtuen to us an d based o n ou r exa minatio n of the

reco.ds oI the company, the conDanv hd not enteEd into non'cash tGnsacnonswitb diredort

orpe*ons.onoed.d with them. a.cordinglv, pa.rgEph 3(p) isnot.Dplicabl€lothe coop'nv'

(xvi) Accordins to the ihromation and explanatioos Siven to us, the compa.v is 6ot requlred io h.

.egistered under sedion 45 IA of the Resery. BanL ofl.dia A4,1934' A'cordinglv paEgnphs

3(xvil are not applicable to th. conpanv.
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(xvi'l The company has incured .ash lo$es or tu. 275.66 Larrh in the curent rirancial y.ar and this
behgthe nrstyearof th€conpanypre.edh8yearfr guBar..otappticable

(xviii)There ha nol been.ny r.stgnation ofrhdstatutoryaudlorsduflnatbeyear

(xix) Ac.ordin8 b the information and explanations Biv.. to us ahd on ths basis of the fihan.ial
ratios, aSeihg and expected daies of realization of frhanciat dsetr and paynent oi fimncial
liabilities, other information a..ompanyin8 rhe ti.rnciat statemenrs, our knowt€d8e of the
Soard of Directo6 and nanaeemenr plans and based on our ennin.tion of the diddr.e
suppotlngthe assumptions nothing has cone to our are.lon whi.h.auses !s ro betjeve that
any material un.efrainty exkts as on the date orthe audit repod that companyis.oicapabte of
m..ting its liabiliries existing.t the date ofbatance sh€€t as and when th.y faI due within a
period ofoneyearfronthebalancesheetdate.we, howevei nJt. rhai this is not an ssuBn.e
as tothe flture viability oI the company. we runher state thatourreponine h based onthe hcis
up to the date ofthe audit reporr and we neither Bive any guaEntee nor any assurance rhar a[
liabilitieshllingduewithinape.iodofoneyearlronihebalancesheetdatewiltg.tdischar3ed
bythd.onpanyasandwhen thevfall du€.

(xx) The companywas not havin8 nei wolth of rupees,ive huhd.ed.ro.e or more or turnover or
rupees o.e hundEd crore or nore or net profit oI five crcres or mor€ during rh. iooediat ly
pre.edin8 fina.cial period and hence p.ovision ofsection 135 ofthe Conpanles A.i ar€.or
applicabl. tothe Companydurin8 the nnancial period A..ordinslJ, p agEpb 3 Gr)(a) & 3 (x,
(blare noiappli.,bleto thecompany

(uil The compsny do not h!re any subsidiari.s loint ve.ruies or associates, AccordinSty, paEgEph
3(uil is notappli.able toih..ompany

For Suresh Kumar Mlttal & Co.
Chart€redAccountaots
FRN:500063N

CA MSHI COSWAMI

(Partnerl

Membership No-:522561
UDIN: 255225618M NSPO9 r76

D,te:10.05.2025
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Ann.x!rc - "B" to Indeped.nt Auditoi Repon

As reretred to in our lndepehdent Audito6' Report to th€ Membe6 of the Nrl6. POWERGRID
Siwani Tr.nsmi$ion Limii€d (Erstwhil. Bitan.. B Power T.a.smission Limit€d) ('The
Comp.ny'), on the Siandalone PinaDcial Statements for the Year Ended 31! Mar.h 2025, we R.pofr

ror Suresh (umar Mittal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:500063N

CA RASHI GOSWA]\'I

(Partner)

Membership No.r522561
I,DIN: 25522561BMNSP09176

Place:New Delhi

Date:10.05.2025

SectorlS Rohini cbh iioo8s

E-ma r sur€shknifi de@!nait @m

Di.cdions u/s 143(s) ofthe companiesAct,

Whether the Company has syst€m in place to
process all the accounting transadions through
lT srsten? lIyes, the inpli.aiio.s df p.d.essing
ofa.counting tEosacrions outside IT srsten on
the integriry of the accounts along with th.
frnanci.l imDlications, ilany may best ted.

The Conpany k haviq ERP st6t.m [SAP] in
place Io. processing all accountine
hansadions. Based on ou. vEnfi.ation, no

ac.ou.tihg tEnsa.tion is b.i.8 recorded/
proc.$ed oiher rhan throuSh the ERP slsten

r'vhethertheB is any re$ruduriogoran existing
of waiver/write ofr of

iebts/loans/i.t.r.nek. nade bya lend.r torhe
:ompany due to the .ompany's inability to repay
:he loan? lI yes, the financial iopact may be

ltated. whether such cases are pmperD
rcount.d foi? (lh.ase,lehder is a government
:ohpanJ4 then this direction is also applic2ble
for natutory audnor of lender company)

Ther€ are no cases ofr€studu.ln8olaxistin8
loa. or cases of waiver/w.ite of of

whether funds (Brants/subsidy etc)
re.eiv.d/receivable tor speci6c schemes lioo
:ankal/state covernment or its aSen.ies ware
properly accounted torlutilired as per iB term
rnd.ondnions? Listthe casesoldeviatio..

No tunds kmnts/subsidyetl bs been
r.c.ived/receivabk nom centml/state
CoverDment or its agen.i.s.
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comptian.e Certifi.ai.

We have conducted rhe audir of annual accounrs rws. POWXRGRTD Siwani Transmi$ion
Iimited (Ertwhil€ Dikan€! B Power Tiansmi$ion Lim ed) for rh€ yearended 31r March
2025 rn accordance with the dir€ctions/subdirections jssued bv rhe C&Ac or rndia uhder
sc.rion l4,qt or rhe conprlre\ A,r 20tJ and,"d tu rlar seidve,onphed wrrh dI rhp
Dire.iions/Sub di.ections issued ro us

ForSuresh Kumar lrtittal & Co,
Cha.tered Accountants
FRN:500063N

CA RASHI GOSWA]\4I

[4embe6hip No.: 522561
UDINr 255225618MNSPO9176

Date:10.05.2025
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ANNEXURE - "C" ro the lndepend.nt Au.litot's R€po.t

As rerered ro rn our tndependenr Audirors, Repod ro the meohers or the Ws, POWIRCRID
Siwani Transmission limited (Ersiwnite Bikaner B power Tran3mission Limir€d) (.,the
Company'), on theStandalone F nan.iat Statements fortheyearendo{t31 MarchZO2s

We have audited the lhternal Financiat Co.rrok
March 2025 in conjun.tion with our audjt oi the
theyearended on that dare.

Manag€nent's R€rponslhntty for tnrem:t Flnanctal contrcts

The Board of Dnd.tors of th. Conpany is responsibte for .stablishing and naiDbining tnternal
Finan.ialControl bas.d on "rhe Inter&t Controtove. Financiat Reponing criteria esabtished by th€
Company consid.ring the essential conponents of internat contrct siated in the Cuidan.e Note on
Audit ol lnterhal Fi.ancial Controts ova. Financial Rdpofring issued by ths tnstitute of Chaft..d
Accou.rants of rndi, 0cAtl't Thes. .ssponsibilities in.tud€ rhe desjsq inptenent.non and
maintenan.e ofadequate lnternal Finan.ial Conrots thzt were opemtin8.f.cnvet for ensurh8 th€
ord.rly and eflicient .onducr of ts busin.ss, the saie8uardiq dt its assets, lhe pr.vention and
d.te.tion oI irauds and erro6 rhe accum.y and completeness of th€ ac.ountin8 recordr and the
timely!repararion ofreliable tinan.iat information, as required under ComDanie5Act,2013.

We note that the board of the company has apDroved to operate and manage the nnancial Eporting
pro..ss ofthe comFny ihrou8h Sroup company employ.es deputed by the par.hi.ddpanya.d rh:t
th. companydoes not have a.y employee on irs role The fi nancia I state mebrs and r.tated informarion
and repoft produ.ed for our audit .re prepared and pres.nted under the contrct of corporate
nnancia I re pofti ng team and th. mrnagem en t of the .o mpany hasconfirmedthatthey.onptywith the
internal6nancialcontroloverfrn.ncialreportingasadopiedbytheparentcompany

0ur lesponsibility is to axpr.ss an opinion o. the intern.l linan.ial .ont.ols ove. rinancial leportinC
based on ouraudit.we.ondud€d our atrdit in ac.ordance with th. Cuida..e Note onAudit oflnrernal
Financial Cdntol ove. Financial Reporting the Cuidan.. Note") and rhe Standards oh AudirihS,
issued by ICAI and deemed to bd presoibed undersecnon 143(101olthe Conpanies Act,2013, to the
exte.t applicable to an aud[ of lnternal Fi.a.ciat Contrcls. Those Standards and rh. Culdan.e Note
equire|hatwe comply with ethical requnenents and plan and perform the audit toobtain r.asonable
assurance abour wh.ther adequate inte.nal linan.ial controls over finan.ial reponing was established
and maintain.dand ifsu.h.onhoh opemtsd efedively in allmatenal resped.

0u.audit involves performi4 procedures to obbi. audft evjd.n.e about the adequacyofthe intem.l
nnan.ial .o.t 15 sysieh ove! fina.cial reportiry and tien oper.rins effecriveness. Our .udit of

over Finan.ial ReportinE ofthe compaiy as at 31.,
Finan.ial Standalone Statements of the Compa.y for
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rnternal linancial .onrrols over 0nanciat reportinS rnctuded obraininS an unde$randinS of internal
financral contols over 6nan.ial reportin& assessing rhe risk that a materiat @ak ess exisr5 and
testing.nd.valurtin8thedesSnrndoperarinSeffectivenessoffternatco.rolbas€dontheases*d
nsk.The pro.edures seledsd depdnd on theauditor,siudsenent,,ndudinsthe assdssmentofthe rlsk
oaoate al mhstatehantolthe finandalstatements,wheth€r due to fraudorerror

s€.tol13 Roh n', Oelh,110035
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We believe thaitheauditevid.n.ewehaw obtaindd is sutfici€nl and app.opriate to providea basis for
ourauditopiniononth.Company'sinrernalfinancialmntmlsgsteiroverrinan.iatreporrin&

Meartng of lnternal rlnxnclal Controls orer FlEnclal Repordng

A .ompany's intemal finanoal .ontrol over frnan.ial rcportiq is a pr..€$ desiened to provide
rdasonable assurance rqardms the.eliabiliry of frnancial repo(ins and th. D.sparation offrn.ncial
statements for ene.nal purposes in accordance with Beneratly a.cepted accountin8 prjn.ipt6. A
conpany's internal linancial .ontrcl over financial repolltng inclutt.s rhose poli.jes and prccedures

(1) Perrain to ihe maintenance ofrecords that in reasonabte derait, a.curarety and fairty reosi rhe
tBnsactions and d6positions of the assets olthe.ompanyi
(21Provide reasonable assuran.z thathansactionsare record.d as ne.essary to permit preparadon of
finan.ial statements in .ccordan.€ with genemlly accepted ac.ounting principles, and that receipts
and expeDditures of the Company are bei.g made o.ly in acLord.nce with authorizations of
nanagement and dia.ro6 orthe.ompan, and
(3) Provide resonable assuEn.e egardin8 Drewntion or rimely der.ction ot unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's asets that .ould have a harerial eliect on rhe

Lhltatlont of l.l.rnal Flnanclal Contrcls orerrh.ncial R.potnla

Because ofthe inherent limitations of i.lernal frnan.ial conr.ls ov.r tinan.ial reponinS, lnteroal
financial contrcls heing mana8ed through employees deDuted irom parent company includih3 chicf
finan.ial ofi..r of ihe .ofrpany, ln.luding the possibility of collusion or improper manUement
ovedde oI controls, materialmisstaiements due to erroror fmud mayoccurandnot be detected. Also,
projedions of any evaluation of the internal fihan.ial .ohfols over llnanclal Eponlog to tuture
periods are subject to the risk that the internal finan.ial cohtols ovd finan.ial repohim may becone
ihadequare b.c.use oI ch.n8es in conditiotu, or rhat tbe degr...f conpliance wuh ihe polj.i.s or
prccedu.es oay det€norate.



SURESH KUMAR MITTAT & CO.
CI]ARTEREO ACCOUNTANTS SeclorlS Rohini Delhi.liOOBs

E.mair : s0reshknrra co@smai .coh

ln our opjtudn, the Codpany has, ln att m.reriat respd, an adequate Internal Financiat Connots
Srstem over Finan.ialRepodins and su.h r.ternatFDanciatconirols over Fi.anciat Reponi.g were
opemti4 effecrivety as at 3lst Mar.h 2025 based on 'thd tnternatFinanciatConhots over Fl;a.cial
Repoiting dteria estabtished by the Company .onsiderin8 the essential componahts of Internat
Control slat.d rn the Cuidance Note on Audit dftnternal FinanciatContols Over Financial Repo.ilng
nsued by th. lnstitute of Chartered A..ountants oI t.dia]

Ior Su.esh Xuma. Mittal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
fRN:500053N

CA RASHI GOSWAMI

IPartner)
Membe6hipNo.: s22561
UDIN: 25522561BMNSP09176



(₹ In  Lakh)

Note

4
5
6

7

8
9

10

11

12
13

The accompanying notes (1 to 35) form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 500063N

Vamsi Ramamohan Burra Sudharshan D
Chairperson Director
DIN: 09806168 DIN: 10861092
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May, 2025 Date: 09 May, 2025

Rashi Goswami Harmeet Singh Nitika Sharma
Partner Finance In-charge Not applicable
Mem. No. 522561 #N/A #N/A
Place: New Delhi #N/A #N/A
Date: 10 May, 2025 Date: 09 May, 2025 Date: 09 May, 2025

 Current assets
(a) Financial assets

POWERGRID Siwani Transmission Limited

(Erstwhile Bikaner B Power Transmission Limited)

CIN : U42202DL2024GOI431225

Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2025
B-9, Qutab Institutional Area, Katwaria Sarai, New Delhi, 110016 

ASSETS
 Non-current assets

(a) Capital work in progess
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
(c) Other non-current assets

Total Equity and Liabilities

   (ii) Other current financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(a) Financial liabilities
    (i) Borrowings

Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity

 As at 31 March, 2025 Particulars

(b) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro & small enterprises

(a) Financial liabilities
    (i) Trade payables

(a) Total Outstanding dues of micro & small 
enterprises

Current liabilities

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

    (i) Cash and cash equivalents

2,563.20                                                                 
69.38                                                                      

3,878.58                                                                 

5.89                                                                        
5.89                                                                        

6,511.16                                                                 

62.00                                                                      
(206.28)                                                                  
(144.28)                                                                  

6,517.05                                                                 

6,001.08                                                                 
6,001.08                                                                 

6,517.05                                                                 

53.90                                                                      
660.25                                                                    

-                                                                         

0.60                                                                        
605.75                                                                    

BURRA 
VAMSI RAMA 
MOHAN

Digitally signed by 
BURRA VAMSI RAMA 
MOHAN 
Date: 2025.05.09 
18:28:07 +05'30'

Sudarshan 
Dharanikota

Digitally signed by 
Sudarshan Dharanikota 
Date: 2025.05.09 18:42:41 
+05'30'



(₹ In  Lakh)

Particulars Note

Revenue From Operations
Other Income
 Total Income 
EXPENSES
Finance costs 14
Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses 15
 Total expenses  
 Profit/(loss) before tax 
Tax expense:
 Current tax
 Deferred tax 
 Total tax expenses 
 Profit/(Loss) for the period 
Other Comprehensive Income
 Total Comprehensive Income for the period 
Earnings per equity share ( Par value ₹10/- each):
Basic and Diluted (₹)
The accompanying notes (1 to 35) form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 500063N

Vamsi Ramamohan Burra Sudharshan D
Chairperson Director
DIN: 09806168 DIN: 10861092
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May, 2025 Date: 09 May, 2025

Rashi Goswami Harmeet Singh Nitika Sharma
Partner Finance In-charge Not applicable
Mem. No. 522561 #N/A #N/A
Place: New Delhi #N/A #N/A
Date: 10 May, 2025 Date: 09 May, 2025 Date: 09 May, 2025

POWERGRID Siwani Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Bikaner B Power Transmission Limited)

CIN : U42202DL2024GOI431225

Statement of Profit and Loss For the period from 14 May, 2024 to 31 March, 2025
B-9, Qutab Institutional Area, Katwaria Sarai, New Delhi, 110016 

-                                                                                         
-                                                                                         
-                                                                                         

For the period from 14 May, 2024 to 31 March, 2025

-                                                                                         
-                                                                                         

275.66                                                                                   
275.66                                                                                   

(275.66)                                                                                 

-                                                                                         
(69.38)                                                                                   

(340.28)                                                                                 

(69.38)                                                                                   
(206.28)                                                                                 

-                                                                                         
(206.28)                                                                                 

BURRA VAMSI 
RAMA MOHAN

Digitally signed by BURRA 
VAMSI RAMA MOHAN 
Date: 2025.05.09 18:28:29 
+05'30'

Sudarshan 
Dharanikota

Digitally signed by 
Sudarshan Dharanikota 
Date: 2025.05.09 18:46:01 
+05'30'



(₹ In  Lakh)
Sl. 
No.
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Tax
Adjustment for :
Adjustment for Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities & Provisions
Cash generated from operations
Net Cash from Operating Activities

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Cash used in Investing Activities
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of Shares
Proceeds from Borrowings

Non Current
Current

Repayment of Borrowings
Current

Finance Costs paid
Net Cash used in Financing Activities

D Net change in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C)
E Cash and Cash equivalents (Opening balance)

F Cash and Cash equivalents (Closing balance)
The accompanying notes (1 to 35) form an integral part of financial statements
Further Notes

As per our report of even date
For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 500063N

Vamsi Ramamohan Burra Sudharshan D
Chairperson Director
DIN: 09806168 DIN: 10861092
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May, 2025 Date: 09 May, 2025

Rashi Goswami
Partner
Mem. No. 522561
Place: New Delhi
Date: 10 May, 2025

Note 1 - Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks.

Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible Assets and Capital Work in Progress 
(including Advances for Capital Expenditure)

POWERGRID Siwani Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Bikaner B Power Transmission Limited)

CIN : U42202DL2024GOI431225
B-9, Qutab Institutional Area, Katwaria Sarai, New Delhi, 110016 

Statement of Cash Flows For the period from 14 May, 2024 to 31 March, 2025

Particulars

(275.66)                                                                          

 For the period from 14 May, 2024 to 31 March, 
2025 

54.50                                                                              
(221.16)                                                                          
(221.16)                                                                          

(5,759.43)                                                                       
(5,759.43)                                                                       

62.00                                                                              

6,001.08                                                                         
-                                                                                 

-                                                                                 

-                                                                                 

5.89                                                                                

(76.60)                                                                            
5,986.48                                                                         

5.89                                                                                

BURRA 
VAMSI RAMA 
MOHAN

Digitally signed by 
BURRA VAMSI RAMA 
MOHAN 
Date: 2025.05.09 
18:28:43 +05'30'

Sudarshan 
Dharaniko
ta

Digitally signed 
by Sudarshan 
Dharanikota 
Date: 2025.05.09 
18:49:54 +05'30'



Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 Corporate and General Information
POWERGRID Siwani Transmission Limited(Erstwhile Bikaner B Power Transmission
Limited) (‘’the Company’’)  is a public company domiciled and incorporated in India under
the provisions of The Companies Act and a wholly owned subsidiary of Power Grid
Corporation of India Limited. The registered office of the Company is situated at B-9, Qutab
Institutional Area, Katwaria Sarai, New Delhi-110 016, India and Corporate Office of the
Company is situated at SCO Bay No. 5 to 10, Sector 16A, Faridabad – 121002, Haryana.

The Company was incorporated on 14 May, 2024 for establishment of Transmission System
for Evacuation of Power from Rajasthan REZ Ph-IV (Part-3: 6 GW) [Bikaner Complex]: Part
B on Build, Own, Operate and Transfer (BOOT) basis. POWERGRID has acquired 100%
equity shares from REC Power Development Consultancy Limited on 11 November, 2024.
Currently, the project is under construction stage.

The Company is engaged in business of Power Systems Network, construction, operation
and maintenance of transmission systems and other related allied activities.

The financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 09 May, 2025.

Note 2 Material Accounting Policy Information

A summary of the material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of the
financial statements are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements.

2.1  Basis of Preparation
i) Compliance with Ind AS 

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the provisions of Electricity Act, 2003, in each case, to the extent applicable and as
amended thereafter.

ii) Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention except certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (Refer Note
no. 2.11 for accounting policy regarding financial instruments). 



iii) Functional and presentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rupees or ₹), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency, and all amounts are rounded to the
nearest lakhs and two decimals thereof, except as stated otherwise.

iv) Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Although, such estimates and assumptions are made on a reasonable and prudent basis
taking into account all available information, actual results could differ from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. 

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future years (refer Note no. 3 on critical
accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments).

v) Current and non-current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-
current classification. 

An asset is current when it is:
• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when: 
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.
The Company recognises twelve months period as its operating cycle.



2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
Initial Recognition and Measurement
Property, Plant and Equipment is initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction
including any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. After
initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation / amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of land includes provisional deposits, payments/liabilities towards compensation,
rehabilitation and other expenses wherever possession of land is taken.

Expenditure on levelling, clearing and grading of land if incurred for construction of
building is capitalised as part of cost of the related building.

Spares parts individually costing more than ₹10,00,000/- standby equipment and servicing
equipment which meets the recognition criteria of Property, Plant and Equipment are
capitalised.

Subsequent costs
Subsequent expenditure is recognised as an increase in carrying amount of assets when it is
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
company and cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. If the cost of the replaced part or earlier
inspection component is not available, the estimated cost of similar new parts/inspection
component is used as an indication of what the cost of the existing part/ inspection
component was when the item was acquired or inspection was carried out.

The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in
the Statement of Profit & Loss as incurred.

Derecognition
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the date of disposal or
derecognition.

2.3 Capital Work-In-Progress (CWIP)
Cost of material, erection charges and other expenses incurred for the construction of
Property, Plant and Equipment are shown as CWIP based on progress of erection work till
the date of capitalisation.



Expenditure of office, and Projects, directly attributable to construction of property, plant
and equipment are identified and allocated on a systematic basis to the cost of the related
assets.

Interest during construction and expenditure (net) allocated to construction as per policy
above are kept as a separate item under CWIP and apportioned to the assets being
capitalised in proportion to the closing balance of CWIP.

Unsettled liability for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts is
accounted for on estimated basis as per terms of the contracts.

2.4 Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under development
Intangible assets with finite useful life that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Subsequent expenditure on already capitalised Intangible assets is capitalised when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in an existing asset and is amortised
prospectively. 

The cost of software (which is not an integral part of the related hardware) acquired for
internal use and resulting in significant future economic benefits is recognised as an
intangible asset when the same is ready for its use.

Afforestation charges for acquiring right-of-way for laying transmission lines are accounted
for as intangible assetsunder development till the commssioning of related transmission
lines.

Expenditure incurred, eligible for capitalisation under the head Intangible Assets, are
carried as “Intangible Assets under Development” till such assets are ready for their
intended use. 

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is derecognised.

2.5 Depreciation / Amortisation - Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation/Amortisation on the items of Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on
straight line method based on the useful life specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act,
2013 except for the following items of property, plant and equipment on which depreciation
is provided based on estimated useful life as per technical assessment .

Particulars                                                                      Useful life
1 Computers and Peripherals                                             3 Years
2 Servers and Network Components                                 5 Years

Depreciation on spares parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment which are
capitalised, is provided on straight line method from the date they are available for use over
the remaining useful life of the related assets of transmission business.



Residual value is considered as 5% of the Original Cost for all items of Property, Plant and
Equipment in line with Companies Act, 2013 except for Computers and Peripherals and
Servers and Network Components for which residual value is considered as Nil.

Property, plant and equipment costing ₹5,000/- or less, are fully depreciated in the year of
acquisition.

Where the cost of depreciable property, plant and equipment has undergone a change due
to price adjustment, change in duties or similar factors, the unamortised balance of such
asset is depreciated prospectively.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from Property, Plant and Equipment during the
year is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for
use/disposed.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation for items of property, plant
and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively,
wherever required.

Right of Use Assets:
Right of Use assets are fully depreciated from the lease commencement date on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land is fully amortised over lease period or useful life of the related plant
whichever is lower Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortised.

Intangible Assets
Cost of software capitalised as intangible asset is amortised over the period of legal right to
use or 3 years, whichever is less with Nil residual value. 

Amortisation on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the year is charged
on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at
each financial year-end and are accounted for as change in accounting estimates in
accordance with Ind AS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors”.

2.6 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets
are capitalised (net of income on temporary deployment of funds) as part of the cost of such
assets till the assets are ready for the intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they are incurred. 



2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions
of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less
costs to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating
unit”, or “CGU”).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying
amounts of the assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at bank, and deposits held at call with
banks having a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. 

2.9 Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of the cost, determined on weighted average basis and net
realisable value.

Spares which do not meet the recognition criteria as Property, Plant and Equipment,
including spare parts individually costing upto ₹10,00,000/- are recorded as inventories.

Surplus materials as determined by the management are held for intended use and are
included in the inventory.

The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable and surplus stores and spares is
ascertained on review and provided for.



2.10 Leases
Lease is a contract that conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: 

(i) the contract involves use of an identified assets, 
(ii) the customer has substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the asset through

the period of the lease and

(iii) the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset.

i) As a Lessee
At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset
(ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for lease with a term of twelve months or less (i.e. short-term leases) and leases for
which the underlying asset is of low value. For these short-term and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value, the Company recognises the lease payments on straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the inception date of the lease along with any initial direct costs, restoration obligations and
lease incentives received.

Subsequently, the right-of-use assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The Company applies Ind AS 36 to determine whether a ROU asset is impaired
and accounts for any identified impairment loss as described in the accounting policy 2.7 on
“Impairment of non-financial assets”.

The lease liability is initially measured at present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date.

The interest cost on lease liability is expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless
eligible for capitalisation as per accounting policy 2.6 on “Borrowing costs”.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the financial statements
and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

ii) As a Lessor
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

a) Finance leases 
A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset is classified as a finance lease.



Transmission system assets developed only for the State Transmission Utilities and
Transmission system assets developed on Build, Own, Operate and Transfer (BOOT) are
considered as ready for intended use after meeting the conditions for commercial operation
as stipulated in Transmission Service Agreement (TSA) and transferred to lease receivables
accordingly. 

Net investment in leased assets are recorded as receivable at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments as Lease
Receivables under current and non-current other financial assets.

In case, final settlement of bills with contractors is yet to be effected, Net investment is
considered on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustments in the year of final
settlement. 
The interest element of lease is accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease
period based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment.

b) Operating leases
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Leases in which a significant portion
of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases.

For operating leases, the asset is capitalised as property, plant and equipment and
depreciated over its economic life. Rental income from operating lease is recognised over
the term of the arrangement.

2.11 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

•       at amortised cost,
•       at fair value through other comprehensive income

The classification depends on the following:
•       the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
•       the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs, if any, that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.



Subsequent measurement
Debt Instruments at Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or
impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the 
effective interest rate method.

Debt Instruments at Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets
that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). On derecognition of
the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the
equity to profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.

Debt instruments at Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest income and net gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at
FVPL are recognised in statement of profit and loss and presented within other income in
the period in which it arises.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when

i) The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
ii) a) The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset (or)

retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients and 

b) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset (or) the
company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset but has transferred control of the asset.

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration
received/receivable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:
For trade receivables and contract assets, the company applies the simplified approach
required by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.



For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based
on 12 -month ECL.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset to another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with
another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company. 

The Company’s financial liabilities include loans & borrowings, trade and other payables.

Classification, initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial
liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of financial liabilities. 

Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate (EIR). Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the
borrowings using the EIR. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognised. 

The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liability
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as other income or finance cost.



Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

2.12
(a)  

Foreign Currency Translation
Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rupees or ₹), which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on
the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated with reference to 
the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the Balance Sheet. Non-Monetary items
denominated in foreign currency are reported at the exchange rate ruling on the date of
initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability, or the
date that related item is recognised in the financial statements, whichever is earlier. In case
the transaction is recognised in stages, then transaction date is established for each stage.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net
basis within other gains/ (losses).

2.13 Income Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity or other comprehensive income. In this case the tax is also recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax
The Current Tax is based on taxable profit for the year under the tax laws enacted and
applicable to the reporting period in the countries where the company operates and
generates taxable income and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.



Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the Balance Sheet method.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority.

2.14 Revenue
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price to which the Company expects to be
entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service
to a customer.

Significant Financing Component
Where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer
and payment by the customer exceeds one year, the Company assesses the effects of
significant financing component in the contract. As a consequence, the Company makes
adjustment in the transaction prices for the effects of time value of money.

2.14.1 Revenue from Operations 
Transmission Income is accounted for based on tariff orders notified by the Electricity
Regulatory Commissions.

As at each reporting date, transmission income includes an accrual for services rendered to
the customers but not yet billed.

Rebates allowed to beneficiaries as early payment incentives are deducted from the amount
of revenue.



The Transmission system incentive / disincentive is accounted for based on certification of
availability by the respective Regional Power Committees (RPCs) and in accordance with
the Transmission Service Agreement (TSA) signed by the Company along with applicable
rules and regulations. Where certification by RPCs is not available, incentive/disincentive is
accounted for on provisional basis as per estimate of availability by the company and
differences, if any is accounted upon certification by RPCs.

Other Operating Revenue 

Income from Scrap generated from other than Plant, Property and Equipment is accounted
for as and when sold.

2.14.2 Other Income
Interest income is recognised, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or
collectability exists, on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the applicable interest rate, using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Surcharge recoverable from trade receivables, liquidated damages, warranty claims and
interest on advances to suppliers are recognised when no significant uncertainty as to
measurability and collectability exists.

Income from Scrap generated from Plant, Property and Equipment is accounted for as and
when sold.

Insurance claims for loss of profit are accounted for in the year of acceptance. Other
insurance claims are accounted for based on certainty of realisation.

Revenue from rentals and operating leases is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance
with the substance of the relevant agreement.

2.15 Dividends
Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is
recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on
dividend distribution is recognised directly in equity.

2.16
a) 

Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.



b) Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management /
independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to
reflect the current management estimate.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the
financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of judgment
of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

2.17 Share capital and Other Equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Self-insurance reserve is created @0.12% p.a. on Original Gross Block of Property, Plant and
Equipment and value of inventory except ROU assets and assets covered under insurance
as at the end of the year by appropriation of current year profit to mitigate future losses
from un-insured risks and for taking care of contingencies in future by procurement of
towers and other transmission line materials including strengthening of towers and
equipment of AC substation. The Reserve created as above is shown as “Self-Insurance
Reserve” under ‘Other Equity’.

2.18 Prior Period Items
Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for prior period presented in which the error occurred or if the error occurred
before the earliest period presented, by restating the opening balance sheet.

2.19 Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
the shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.



Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to the shareholders and weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares
outstanding during the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

2.20 Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Cash flows is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7
‘Statement of Cash Flows’.



Note 3 Critical Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which may
significantly vary from the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgment
while applying the company’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgments are periodically evaluated. They are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates
and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
Useful life of property, plant and equipment:
The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors
(such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of
maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The Company reviews at the end of each reporting date the useful life of plant and
equipment, and are adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Provisions and contingencies: 
The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made
in accordance with Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has required best judgment by
management regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss. Should circumstances
change following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter.

Income Taxes:
Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for current and deferred tax,
including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.



A. Equity Share Capital (₹ In Lakh)
As at 14 May, 2024                             -   
Changes in equity share capital                       62.00 
As at 31 March, 2025                       62.00 

B. Other Equity  (₹ In Lakh) 

 Self Insurance 
Reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

As at 14 May, 2024                             -                                -   -                               
Total Comprehensive Income for the year                             -                       (206.28) (206.28)                        
As at 31 March, 2025                             -                       (206.28)                         (206.28)

The accompanying notes (1 to 35) form an integral part of financial statements
Refer to Note 9 for nature and movement of Reserve and Surplus.
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Note 4 Capital work in progress (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars  As at 14 May, 2024 
 Additions during 

the year 
 Adjustments 

 Capitalised 
during the year 

 As at 31 March, 
2025 

Expenditure pending allocation
i) Expenditure during construction 
period (net) - (Note 16)

-                              2,563.20                       -                  -                         2,563.20                 

Grand Total -                              2,563.20                       -                  -                        2,563.20                 

Refer Note 18 for ageing and completion schedule for Capital work in progress (CWIP) for the Project whose completion is overdue or has 
exceed its cost compared to original plan.



Note 5 Deferred tax Assets (Net) (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars

Deferred Tax Assets
Unused Tax Losses
Deferred tax assets (Net)

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets (₹ in Lakh)

MAT Credit
 Unused Tax 

Losses 
Total

As at 31 March, 2024                              -   -                          -                          

 - (Charged) / Credited to Profit or Loss                              -   69.38                      69.38                      

 As at 31 March, 2025                              -   69.38                      69.38                      

Amount taken to Statement of Profit and Loss (₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Deferred Tax Assets
Net Amount taken to Statement of Profit and Loss (69.38)                                                        

69.38                                                         

 For the period from 14 May, 2024 to 
31 March, 2025 

-                                                             
(69.38)                                                        

69.38                                                         

 As at 31 March, 2025 



Note 6 Other non-current Assets
 (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars

 Advances for Capital Expenditure
Unsecured

a. Against bank guarantees
Total
Further Notes:

1
The above advance for capital expenditure includes interest from advances to
contractors amounting to ₹29.42 lakh.

3,878.58                                         

 As at 31 March, 2025 

3,878.58                                         



Note 7 Cash and Cash equivalents (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars
 Balance with banks
-In Current accounts
Total 

As at 31 March, 2025

5.89                                                  
5.89                                                  



Note 8 Equity Share capital
(₹ In Lakh)

Particulars

Equity Share Capital
Authorised 
870570000 equity shares of ₹10/- each at par
Issued, subscribed and paid up
620000 equity shares of ₹10/- each at par
Total
Further Notes:

1 Reconciliation of Number and amount of share capital outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

 No. of Shares 
 ₹ in Lakh
Amount 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year -                                 -                           
Shares Issued during the year 6,20,000                        62.00                        
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 6,20,000                        62.00

2
3

4 Shareholding of Promoters and Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of the Company :-

No. of Shares % of holding

Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (Promoter)# 6,20,000                        100%
REC Power Development Consultancy Limited* -                                 0%

*100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy Limited on 11 November, 2024. Therefore, REC Power Development Consultancy Limited 
ceased to be Holding Company w.e.f. 11 November, 2024.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10/- per share.
The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to their shareholding at meetings of 
the Shareholders.

Particulars

 For the period from 14 May, 2024 to 31 
March, 2025 

Particulars
As at 31 March, 2025

#Out of 620000 Equity shares 6 equity shares are held by nominees of M/s Power Grid Corporation of India Limited on its behalf .

As at 31 March, 2025

87,057.00                                                          

62.00                                                                 
62.00                                                                 



Note 9 Other Equity (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars

(i) Retained Earnings
 Add: Additions 

 Net Profit/(Loss) for the period 
 Balance at the end of the year 
 Total 

Note 10 Borrowings (Non-current) (₹ In Lakh)
Particulars

Rupee Term Loans (Unsecured)

Loan from Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 
(Holding Company)

Less: Interest accrued on borrowings (Refer Note 12)
Total

1

2

3

6,068.37                                          
67.29                                              

6,001.08                                          

(206.28)                                           

As at 31 March, 2025

Refer Note 26 for details of Loan from related parties.

Further Notes:
The various sources of Loans being extended to the company by Holding Company are
Fixed Interest and floating interest rate which get reset periodically. The rate of interest on
the loan ranged from 7.08% p.a. to 7.12% p.a. during the financial year. Loan is repayable in
Quarterly Installments of equal amount over the period of 35 Years from commissioning of
the Project Assets with prepayment facility without any additional charges.

There has been no default in repayment of loans or payment of interest thereon as at the end
of the year

 As at 31 March, 2025 

-                                                  
(206.28)                                           
(206.28)                                           



Note 11 Trade payables (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars

For goods and services
(A)

(B)

Related Parties
Others 

Total
Further Notes:

1

2

3
(₹ In Lakh)

Particulars
Unbilled 

Dues
Not Due <1Y 1Y-2Y 2Y-3Y >3Y Total

As at 31 March, 2025
MSME
Disputed -                -                -          -          -          -          -          
Undisputed -                -                -          -          -          -          -          
Total -                -                -          -          -          -          -          
Others 
Disputed -                -                -          -          -          -          -          
Undisputed 0.60              -                -          -          -          -          0.60         
Total 0.60              -                -          -          -          -          0.60         
Total Trade Payables 0.60              -                -          -          -          -          0.60         

Ageing of Trade Payables is as follows:

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small enterprises

Refer Note 26 for amount payable to related parties.

Disclosure with regard to Micro and Small enterprises as required under “Division II of Schedule III of The
Companies Act, 2013”and “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006” is given in Note
22.

As at 31 March, 2025

-                                                                  

-                                                                  
0.60                                                                
0.60                                                                



Note 12 Other Current Financial Liabilities (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars

Interest accrued on borrowings from

Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (Holding 
Company)
 Others
Related parties

Total
Further Note - 

1

2

Note 13 Other current liabilities (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars

Statutory dues
Total

Note Other income (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars

Interest income from financial assets held at 
amortised cost
Advances to contractors
Total
Less: Transferred to expenditure during construction 
(Net) - Note 16

Note 14 Finance costs (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars

i) Interest and finance charges on financial 
liabilities at amortised cost
Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (Holding 
Company)
REC Power Development Consultancy Limited
Total
Less: Transferred to expenditure during construction 
(Net) - Note 16

1 Refer Note 26 for Interest paid to related parties.
Further Notes:

76.60                                                   

76.60                                                   

For the period from 14 May, 2024 
to 31 March, 2025

29.42                                                   

Refer Note 26. for amount payable to related parties.

Disclosure with regard to Micro and Small enterprises as required under “Division II of
Schedule III of The Companies Act, 2013”and “The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006” is given in Note 22.

As at 31 March, 2025

67.29                                                   

-                                                       
538.46                                                 

53.90                                                   

538.46                                                 

605.75                                                 

As at 31 March, 2025

53.90                                                   

For the period from 14 May, 2024 
to 31 March, 2025

74.77                                                   
1.83                                                     

29.42                                                   

29.42                                                   



Note 15 Other expenses (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars

 Legal expenses 
 Consultancy expenses 
 Payments to Statutory Auditors 

 Audit Fees 

 Regulatory Commission Petition & Other charges 

 Miscellaneous expenses 
 Rates and taxes 

 Less: Transferred to expenditure during 
construction (Net) - Note 16 

Charged To Statement of Profit & Loss

Note 16 Expenditure during Construction (Net) (₹ In Lakh)

Particulars

 A. Other Expenses 
 Consultancy expenses 
 Miscellaneous expenses 
 Total (A) 
 B. Finance Costs 
 a) Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities 
at amortised cost 

 Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 
(Holding Company) 

 REC Power Development Consultancy Limited 

 Total (B) 
 C. Less: Other Income 

 Contractors 
 Total (C) 
 GRAND Total 

For the period from 14 May, 2024 
to 31 March, 2025

0.23                                                     
2,309.31                                              

0.59                                                     

26.00                                                   
180.71                                                 
274.84                                                 

275.66                                                 

 For the period from 14 May, 2024 
to 31 March, 2025 

2,791.68                                              

2,516.02                                              

Further Notes:

2,309.31                                              
206.71                                                 

-                                                       

74.77                                                   

1.83                                                     

76.60                                                   

2,516.02                                              

29.42                                                   
2,563.20                                              

76.60                                                   

29.42                                                   



Note 17

(A)

(i)

(ii)
·    

(iii)
(₹ In Lakh)

(iv)
(a)

(b)

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses

The Company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the
risk of default is very low. At initial recognition, financial assets (excluding trade receivables ) are considered as
having negligible credit risk and the risk has not increased from initial recognition. Therefore, no loss allowance for
impairment has been recognised.

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses

The Company has customers most of whom are state government utilities with capacity to meet the obligations and
therefore the risk of default is negligible. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are 30
days past due date are still collectible in full, based on the payment security mechanism in place and historical
payment behaviour.

Considering the above factors and the prevalent regulations, the trade receivables continue to have a negligible
credit risk on initial recognition and thereafter on each reporting date.

Credit Risk:
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities on account of
trade receivables. 

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 3 years of when
they fall due. This definition of default is determined considering the business environment in which the Company
operates and other macro-economic factors.

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months
Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Other non-current financial assets

Assets are written-off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptcy or
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the
Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where such
recoveries are made, these are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade Receivables
There are no trade receivables as at 31 march, 2025 and as at 31 march, 2024.

Other Financial Assets (excluding trade receivables )
 Cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and cash equivalents of ₹5.89 Lakh. The cash and cash equivalents are held with public
sector banks and high rated private sector banks and do not have any significant credit risk.

Exposure to credit risk

Particulars As at 31 March, 2025

Financial Risk Management
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings denominated in Indian rupees or
foreign currencies, trade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s capital investments and operations.

The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are
generated from its operations.

The Company’s activities expose it to the following financial risks, namely, 
(A)  Credit risk,
(B)   Liquidity risk,
(C)  Market risk.
This note presents information regarding the company’s exposure, objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing these risks. 
The management of financial risks by the Company is summarized below: -

-                                                                   
5.89                                                                  
-                                                                   
-                                                                   

5.89                                                                  
Other current financial assets
Total

Cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Provision for expected credit losses



(B)

(₹ in lakh)
Within a 

year 
Total 

426.53      6,968.18      
0.60           0.60             

-               
-               

605.75      605.75         
1,032.88   7,574.53      

-         -         
(C)

(i)
(ii)

(i)

(ii)  Interest rate risk

The company has taken borrowings from Parent Company on cost to cost basis. The Company is exposed to interest
rate risk because the cash flows associated with floating rate borrowings. The various sources of loans being
extended to the company by parent company are Fixed interest and floating interest rate which get reset periodically.
The Company manages the interest rate risks by maintaining a debt portfolio of fixed and floating rate borrowings.
The Company's interest rate risk is not considered significant; hence sensitivity analysis for the risk is not disclosed. 

Liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company has
entered into Inter-Corporate Loan Agreement for Funding of its obligations.

The Company depends on both internal and external sources of liquidity to provide working capital and to fund
capital expenditure.

Liquidity Risk

Maturities of financial liabilities
The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their
contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities.
The amount disclosed in the table is the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 

                                                                                            -   
Total 2,180.48                  4,361.17                  

As on Reporting date the Company does not have any exposure to currency risk in respect of foreign currency
denominated loans and borrowings and procurement of goods and services whose purchase consideration foreign
currency.

Currency risk

Interest rate risk
Currency risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: 

MARKET RISK
-                              -                           

Others
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Trade payables
Borrowings (including interest outflows)
 As at 31 March, 2025 

Between 1-5 years

2,180.48                  

Beyond 5 years

4,361.17                  



Note 18
a) There are no cases of immovable properties where title deeds are not in the name of the company.

b)
(₹ in lakh)

<1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years >3 Years Total

2,563.20            2,563.20         
-                     -                    -            -            -                  

2,563.20            -                    -            -            2,563.20         

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

i)

j)

k)

l)

 Ratio Numerator Denominator Current Year Previous 
Year

Variance
Reason for 
variance 
>25%

a) Current 
Ratio

Current Assets
Current 
Liabilities

0.01 NA

b) Debt Equity 
Ratio

Total Debt
Shareholder’s 
Equity

-41.59 NA

c) Debt 
Service 
Coverage 
Ratio

Profit for the 
period + 
Depreciation and 
amortization 
expense + Finance 
costs

Interest & 
Lease 
Payments + 
Principal 
Repayments

NA NA

d) Return on 
Equity Ratio

Profit for the 
period

Average 
Shareholder’s 
Equity

286% NA

e) Inventory 
turnover ratio

Revenue from 
Operations

Average 
Inventory

0.00 NA

Additional Regulatory Information as per Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the
Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 during the financial year.

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules made
thereunder as at the end of the financial year.
The Company is not sanctioned any working capital limit secured against current assets by any Finance
Institutions. 

The company was not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender
during the financial year.

The Company does not have any transactions, balances or relationship with Struck off companies.

The Company does not have any Charges on the Assets of the Company.

 Ratios

Aging of Capital Work in Progress is as follows:

Particulars 

The company has no Intangible assets under development, hence disclosure of development completion 
schedule is not applicable

As at 31 March, 2025
Projects in progress

The company has no Intangible assets under development, hence disclosure of ageing of Intangible
assets under development is not applicable.

For capital-work-in progress (CWIP), whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to
its original plan, CWIP completion schedule is as follows:

Total
Projects temporarily suspended



f) Trade 
Receivable 
Turnover 
Ratio

Revenue from 
Operations

Average Trade 
Receivables 
(before 
deducting 
provision)

0.00 NA

g) Trade 
payable 
turnover ratio

Gross Other 
Expense (–) FERV, 
Provisions, Loss 
on disposal of PPE

Average Trade 
payables

9352.38 NA

h) Net capital 
turnover ratio

Revenue from 
Operations

Current Assets - 
Current 
Liabilities

0.00 NA

i) Net profit 
ratio

Profit for the 
period

Revenue from 
Operations

0% NA

j) Return on 
Capital 
employed

Earnings before 
interest and taxes

Tangible Net 
Worth + Total 
Debt + 
Deferred Tax 
Liability

-5% NA

k) Return on 
investment

{MV(T1) – MV(T0) 
– Sum [C(t)]}

{MV(T0) + Sum 
[W(t) * C(t)]}

NA NA

m)

n)

o)

The company has not received/advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) through Intermediaries during the financial year.

The Company does not have any transaction that was not recorded in the books of accounts and has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial
year.



Note 19

Note 20

Note 21

Note 22

2

3

4

5

Note 23
a)  

b)  

Note 24

The company does not have any lease arrangements as a lessor

Since, Company has not satisfied any of the criteria provided in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is
not required to spend any amount for CSR activities. 

a) Some balances of Trade Receivables, Recoverable shown under Assets, Trade payables and Other Payables shown under
Liabilities include balances subject to confirmation/ reconciliation and consequential adjustments if any. However,
reconciliations are carried out on ongoing basis. The management does not expect any material adjustment in the books of
accounts as a result of the reconciliation.

b) In the opinion of the management, the value of any of the assets other than Property, Plant and Equipment on
realization in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the value at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 - “Revenue from Contracts with Customer” 
The company does not have any contract assets or contract liability as at 31 March, 2025.

As a Lessor - Finance Leases:
 Disclosure as per Ind AS 116 - "Leases"

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
any supplier as at end of each accounting year:

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Sr. No.

Borrowing cost capitalised during the year is ₹76.6 Lakh in the respective carrying amount of Property, Plant and
Equipment/Capital work in Progress (CWIP) as per Ind AS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’.

Based on information available with the company, there are few suppliers/service providers who are registered as micro,
small or medium enterprise under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (MSMED Act, 2006).
Information in respect of micro and small enterprises as required by Companies Act 2013 and MSMED Act, 2006 is given
as under:

(₹ in lakh)
Trade Payables Others

Particulars
As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2025

 Principal
 Interest

The amount of Interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of
the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end
of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act 2006

As a Lessee:

Nil

1

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014
read with DPE guidelines no F.No.15 (13)/2013-DPE (GM), the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at
least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years
in accordance with its CSR Policy.

The company does not have any lease arrangements as a lessee.



Note 25
(₹ in lakh)

(₹ in lakh)

Carrying 
Amount

Fair value

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 2 6,068.37               6,046.82       
Total financial liabilities 6,068.37               6,046.82       

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification assets included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. The company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value:
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments includes:

Financial Instruments by category

 Fair Value Measurement

Cash & cash Equivalents
Financial Assets 

Total Financial assets
Financial Liabilities

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that
are measured at fair value and financial instruments that are measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are
disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.
An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Borrowings
Trade Payables

5.89                                                                                                    

6,068.37                                                                                             
0.60                                                                                                    

538.46                                                                                                

Financial instruments that are measured at Amortised Cost:

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, Bank Balance, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial
assets, and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term
nature. 

For financial assets that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

Other Financial Liabilities
Other Current Financial Liabilities
Non-Current
Total financial liabilities

Particulars Level As at 31 March, 2025

-                                                                                                     
6,607.43                                                                                             

•the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
•the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 2.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity bonds
which are traded in the stock exchanges, valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

As at 31 March, 2025
Amortised cost

5.89                                                                                                    



Note 26
(a) Holding Company

As at 31 March, 
2025

0

100% 0%
0% 100%

(b) Subsidiaries of Holding Company

REC Power Development Consultancy Limited* India

India

POWERGRID Bhadla Sikar Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Bhadla Sikar Transmission Limited)

India

India

India

POWERGRID KPS3 Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile KPS3 Transmission Limited)
POWERGRID ERWR Power Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile ERWR Power Transmission Limited)

POWERGRID Teleservices Limited India
POWERGRID Narela Transmission Limited India

POWERGRID Energy Services Limited India

India
India

Place of business/
Country of incorporation

India

Proportion of Ownership 

Place of business /

Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures"

POWERGRID Medinipur Jeerat Transmission Limited
POWERGRID Mithilanchal Transmission Limited 
POWERGRID Varanasi Transmission System Limited 
POWERGRID Jawaharpur Firozabad Transmission Limited
POWERGRID Khetri Transmission System Limited

*100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy Limited on 11 November, 2024.
Therefore, REC Power Development Consultancy Limited ceased to be Holding Company w.e.f. 11 November, 2024.

India
India
India

India

India
India

India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India

POWERGRID Gomti Yamuna Transmission Limited
POWERGRID Neemuch Transmission System Limited India

POWERGRID Khavda II-B Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Khavda II-B Transmission Limited)
POWERGRID Khavda II-C Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Khavda II-C Transmission Limited)
POWERGRID Khavda RE Transmission System Limited (Erstwhile Khavda RE 
Transmission Limited)
POWERGRID KPS2 Transmission System Limited 
(Erstwhile KPS2 Transmission Limited)

India

India

India

India

IndiaPOWERGRID ER NER Transmission Limited

POWERGRID Raipur Pool Dhamtari Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Raipur Pool Dhamtari Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Dharamjaigarh Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Dharamjaigarh Transmission Limited)

POWERGRID Bikaner Transmission System Limited
POWERGRID Sikar Transmission Limited
POWERGRID Bhadla Transmission Limited
POWERGRID Aligarh Sikar Transmission Limited

POWERGRID Rampur Sambhal Transmission Limited
POWERGRID Fatehgarh Transmission Limited

Country of incorporation

India
India
India
India
India
India

India

Power Grid Corporation of India Limited

Name of entity

POWERGRID Bhuj Transmission Limited
POWERGRID Bhind Guna Transmission Limited
POWERGRID Ajmer Phagi Transmission Limited

Name of entity

POWERGRID Vemagiri Transmission Limited
POWERGRID NM Transmission Limited
POWERGRID Unchahar Transmission Limited
POWERGRID Southern Interconnector Transmission System Limited

POWERGRID Meerut Simbhavali Transmission Limited
Central Transmission Utility of India Limited
POWERGRID Ramgarh Transmission Limited
POWERGRID Himachal Transmission Limited



POWERGRID Khavda PS1 and 3 Transmission Limited (Erstwhile Khavda PS1 and 3 
Transmission Limited) -100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC Consulting 
Limited on 07-Nov-2024

POWERGRID Koppal Gadag Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Koppal II Gadag II Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Sikar Khetri Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Sikar Khetri Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Bikaner Neemrana Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Bikaner III Neemrana Transmission Limited)

IndiaPOWERGRID Neemrana  Bareilly Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Neemrana II Bareilly Transmission Limited)

POWERGRID Bidar Transmission limited
(Erstwhile Bidar Transmission Limited)

India

India

POWERGRID Bhadla Bikaner Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Bhadla-III & Bikaner-III Transmission Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC Consulting Limited on 30-Aug-2024

POWERGRID South Olpad Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile South Olpad Transmission Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC Consulting Limited on 15-Oct-2024

POWERGRID Bhadla-III Power Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Bhadla III Power Transmission Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy 
Limited on 28-Aug-2024

POWERGRID Beawar-Mandsaur Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Beawar - Mandsaur Transmission Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC Consulting Limited on 22-Aug-2024

POWERGRID Vataman Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Vataman Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Mandsaur Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Rajasthan IV C Power Transmission Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy 
Limited on 19-Aug-2024

POWERGRID Sirohi Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Sirohi Transmission Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC Consulting Limited on 22-Aug-2024

POWERGRID Ananthpuram Kurnool Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Ananthpuram Kurnool Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Bhadla III Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Bhadla III Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Ramgarh II Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Ramgarh II Transmission Limited)

India

POWERGRID Beawar Dausa Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Beawar Dausa Transmission Limited)

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

POWERGRID Khavda IV-E2 Power Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Khavda IV-E2 Power Transmission Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy 
Limited on 30-May-2024

POWERGRID Mewar Transmission Limited(Erstwhile Rajasthan IV E Power Transmission 
Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy 
Limited on 19-Aug-2024



(c)  Joint Ventures of Holding company

POWERGRID West Central Transmission Limited (Erstwhile Khavda V-A Power 
Transmission Limited) -100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power 
Development Consultancy Limited on 19-Nov-2024
POWERGRID Barmer I Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Barmer I Transmission Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC Consulting Limited on 07-Nov-2024

Khavda V-B1B2 Power Transmission Limited
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy 
Limited on 18-Feb-2025

Kurnool III PS RE Transmission Limited -100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC 
Consulting Limited on 27-Mar-2025

India

Bidar Transco Limited
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy 
Limited on 18-Feb-2025

India

India

India

India

India

India

India

POWERGRID Bikaner IV Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Bikaner A Power Transmission Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy 
Limited on 11-Nov-2024

POWERGRID Kudankulam Transmission Limited (Erstwhile Kudankulam ISTS 
Transmission Limited) -100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC Consulting 
Limited on 10-Jan-2025

POWERGRID Ghiror Transmission Limited(Erstwhile Rajasthan IV 4A Power 
Transmission Limited) -100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power 
Development Consultancy Limited on 30-Dec-2024

POWERGRID Koppal Gadag Augmentation Transmission Limited (Erstwhile Gadag II and 
Koppal II Transmission Limited) -100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC 
Consulting Limited on 16-Jan-2025

 Fatehgarh II And Barmer I PS Transmission Limited -100% equity acquired by 
POWERGRID from PFC Consulting Limited on 21-Mar-2025

India

Banaskantha Transco Limited
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy 
Limited on 24-Mar-2025

POWERGRID Jam Khambhaliya Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Jam Khambhaliya Transmission Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC Consulting Limited on 15-Oct-2024

India

Kurnool-IV Transmission Limited
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy 
Limited on 24-Mar-2025

India

Rajasthan V Power Transmission Limited
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy 
Limited on 24-Mar-2025

India

India

Chitradurga Bellary REZ Transmission Limited
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PFC Consulting Limited on 21-Mar-2025

POWERGRID Kurawar Transmission Limited
(Erstwhile Rajasthan IV H1 Power Transmission Limited)
-100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development Consultancy 
Limited on 15-Oct-2024

India

India

India



(d) Associates of Holding Company*

(e) Key Managerial Personnel

Date of 
Appointment

Date of 
Cessation / 
Separation

11/11/2024 Continuing
16/12/2024 Continuing
16/12/2024 Continuing
16/12/2024 Continuing
11/11/2024 Continuing

14-05-2024 11-11-2024
14-05-2024 11-11-2024
14-05-2024 11-11-2024

(f) Government Related Entities

Shri Arvind Kumar Director

Parli Power Transmission Limited (erstwhile POWERGRID Parli Transmission Limited)

India

India

India

India

India

Shri Vamsi Ramamohan Burra

Shri Abhinav Verma

Designation

Chairperson
Shri Akhilesh Pathak
Shri Sudharshan Dharanikota
Shri Akhilesh Kumar Dixit

Additional Director
Additional Director
Additional Director

Jabalpur Power Transmission Limited (erstwhile POWERGRID Jabalpur Transmission 
Limited)

Warora Transmission Limited (erstwhile POWERGRID Warora Transmission Limited)

Place of business / Country of 
incorporation

Name of entity

Name of entity

India
India

India

Place of business/ Country of 
incorporation

India

Kala Amb Transmission Limited (erstwhile POWERGRID Kala Amb Transmission 
Limited)

India

Nepal

Powerlinks Transmission Limited
Torrent POWERGRID Limited
Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited
Sikkim Power Transmission Limited 
(Erstwhile Teestavalley Power Transmission Limited)
North East Transmission Company Limited
National High Power Test Laboratory Private Limited
Bihar Grid Company Limited
Energy Efficiency Services Limited
Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited
RINL POWERGRID TLT Private Limited (under process of liquidation)

Power Transmission Company Nepal Limited

Name

Additional Director
Chairperson
Director

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Central Public Sector Undertaking (CPSU) controlled by Central
Government by holding majority of shares. 

The Company has business transactions with other entities controlled by the GOI for procurement of capital equipment,
spares and services. Transactions with these entities are carried out at market terms on arms-length basis through a
transparent price discovery process against open tenders, except in a few cases of procurement of spares/services from
Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) for proprietary items/or on single tender basis due to urgency, compatibility or
other reasons. Such single tender procurements are also done through a process of negotiation with prices benchmarked
against available price data of same/similar items. 

The above transactions are in the course of normal day-to-day business operations and are not considered to be significant
keeping in view the size, either individually or collectively.

Shri Kuntala Venugopal
Shri Debasis Mitra

Rajasthan Power Grid Transmission Company Limited (incorporated on 27-11-2024) India

*The above Companies ceased to be the associate of Holding Company subsequent to the transfer their Equity Shares by 
POWERGRID to POWERGRID Infrastructure Investment Trust on 30-12-2024.

Butwal-Gorakhpur Cross Border Power Transmission Limited India

India
India

India
India



(g)

(₹ in lakh)

 
(h)

(₹ in lakh)

Note 27

Note 28
(₹ in lakh)

Note 29
A. 

B. Contingent Assets

Note 30
 a)

Purchase of Goods or Services – Consultancy Expense

Interest Accrued on Loan
Reimbursement of Expenses(Survey and Soil Investingation)

481.45                                                                                                
6,001.08                                                                                             

67.29                                                                                                  
57.01                                                                                                  

Reimbursement of Expenses
Additional Loan obtained during the year
Investments Received during the year 
(Equity/Share application Money)
Interest paid on Loan

REC Power Development Consultancy Limited 
(Holding Company till 11 November, 2024)

Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd. (Holding Company)

Purchases of goods and services – Consultancy

Purchase of Goods or Services – Consultancy Expense
Reimbursement of Expenses

Segment Information

Contingent Liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent Liabilities
No Claims against the Company

The Board of Directors is the company's Chief operating decision maker who monitors the operating results of its business
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. One
reportable segment has been identified on the basis of product/services. The company has a single reportable segment i.e.,
Power transmission network for transmission system.
The operations of the company are mainly carried out within the country and therefore there is no reportable geographical
segment.

Capital and other Commitments

Particulars

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

As at 31 March, 2025

2,53,652.09                                                                                        

Capital management
Risk Management
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to maximize the shareholder value; safeguard its ability to continue
as a going concern; maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Company has no contigent asset

Reimbursement of Expenses(Survey and Soil Investingation)

Interest paid on Loan

Particulars

Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd. 
(Holding Company)

Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties (excluding taxes):

Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

Particulars
Amounts payable

Loans from Holding Company

As at 31 March, 2025

For the period from 14 May, 2024 to 31 March, 2025

445.79                                                                                                
51.15                                                                                                  

6,001.08                                                                                             
62.00                                                                                                  

1.83                                                                                                    

74.77                                                                                                  
63.35                                                                                                  

-                                                                                                     

1,770.00                                                                                             
70.28                                                                                                  



Note 31

Note 32

(a)
(₹ in lakh)

(b)
(₹ in lakh)

As at 31 March, 2025

6,001.08                                     
-144.28                                       

                                         (41.59)

For the purpose of the company’s capital management, equity capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, regulate investments in its projects, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is the ratio of long term debt to Total net worth.
The company includes within long term debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings and current maturities of long-term
debt. 

The debt –equity ratio of the Company was as follows: -
As at 31 March, 2024

NA

Particulars

Total debt (₹ in lakh)

For the period from 14 May, 
2024 to 31 March, 2025

-340.28                                        
-206.28                                        

                                          60,621 

Equity (₹ in lakh)
Long term debt to Equity ratio
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31.03.2025 and
31.03.2024.

NA
                                                 -   

Profit before income tax expense including movement in 
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances

Tax at the Company's domestic tax rate of 25.168 %

Deferred Tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Total deferred tax expense /benefit
Income tax expense (A+B)

Income tax expense

Income Tax expense
This note provides an analysis of the company’s income tax expense, and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable
and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the Company’s tax position.

Particulars

Current Tax
Current tax on profits for the year

For the period from 14 May, 2024 to 31 March, 2025

-                                                                                                     

-69.38                                                                                                

-69.38                                                                                                
Income tax expense -69.38                                                                                                

 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

Particulars

-69.38                                                                                                
-69.38                                                                                                

For the period from 14 May, 2024 to 31 March, 2025

-275.66                                                                                              

Particulars

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company (in 
Total Earnings attributable to the equity holders of the company (₹ in lakh)
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Earnings per share 



Note 33

Note 34

Note 35

As per our report of even date
For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 500063N

Vamsi Ramamohan Burra Sudharshan D
Chairperson Director
DIN: 09806168 DIN: 10861092
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 09 May, 2025 Date: 09 May, 2025

Rashi Goswami Harmeet Singh Nitika Sharma
Partner Finance In-charge Not applicable
Mem. No. 522561 #N/A #N/A
Place: New Delhi #N/A #N/A
Date: 10 May, 2025 Date: 09 May, 2025 Date: 09 May, 2025

Amendments to Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS):
On 12.08.2024, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2024 applicable from 01.04.2024 introducing Ind AS 117 "Insurance Contracts", and amendments to Ind
AS 116 "Lease". The Company has assessed that the amendments have no effect on the Accounts of the Company.

a) Figures have been rounded off to nearest rupees in lakh up to two decimals.

Recent Pronouncements 

Employee Benefits
The Company does not have any permanent employees. The personnel working for the company are from holding
company on secondment basic and are working on time share basis. The employee cost (including retirement benefits such
as Gratuity, leave encashment, post-retirement benefits etc.) in respect of personnel working for the company are paid by
holding company. Since there are no employees in the company, the obligation as per Ind-AS 19 does not arise.
Accordingly, no provision is considered necessary for any retirement benefit like gratuity, leave salary, pension etc., in the
books of the company.

BURRA VAMSI 
RAMA MOHAN
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